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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

September 21, 2022

To the Board of Directors
Estes Park Health
Estes Park, Colorado

We have audited the financial statements of Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated September 21, 2022. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our letter dated March 7, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Estes Park Health solely for the
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit

of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated September 21,
2022.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by Estes Park Health is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.
There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or
their application during 2021. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under
professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual
transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience
about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility
that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are as follows:

Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements — Management’s estimate of the amounts either owed to or
receivable from third-party payors is based on both final and tentatively settled cost reports, requests
from Recovery Audit Contractors, and other expectations. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare
and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to interpretation. There is a reasonable
possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. Management
believes that the estimates for all open years are adequate. Any differences between the estimates and
the final settlements will be recorded in the period the final settlements are made and will not be
treated as prior period adjustments.

Allowance for Contractual Allowances and Doubtful Accounts — Management’s estimate of the
allowance for contractual allowances and doubtful accounts is based on historical loss levels and an
analysis of the collectability of individual accounts.

Self-Funded Health Insurance Liability — Management’s estimate of self-funded health insurance liability
is based on the timing and amounts of historical payments.

Provider Relief Funds — Amounts received from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) Act Provider Relief Fund are subject to terms and conditions, which state payments will only be
used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus and shall reimburse the recipient only for
healthcare-related expenses or lost revenues that are attributable to coronavirus. Management’s
estimate of the funds recognized as income is based on meeting the terms and conditions. The terms
and conditions are subject to interpretation.




We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates related to amounts either
owed to or receivable from third-party payors, the collectability of patient receivables, self-funded
health insurance liability and provider relief funds in determining that they are reasonable in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the
audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also
communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of
transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Uncorrected
misstatements or matters underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period
financial statements to be materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial
to the financial statements currently under audit.

The following misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to the
attention of, and corrected by, management:

¢ Increase in Accounts payable and construction in process of $277,000 for late invoices which weren’t
accrued

e Restatement of 2020 grant revenue and receivable of $500,000 for a cost reimbursable grant that
should have been recorded

The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current and
prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

e Increase to other receivables and other revenues of $331,000 ~ To record a receivable and revenue
related to final business interruption payment received subsequent to year end.

The effect of this uncorrected misstatement, including the effect of the reversal of prior year uncorrected
misstatements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, is an understatement of net position and
change in net position of approximately $331,000.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
which could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose
during the course of the audit.



Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report
We have made the following modification to our auditor’s report:

As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, the 2020 financial statements have been restated to correct
a misstatement. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

As part of our audit of the 2021 financial statements, we also audited the adjustments described in Note 12 that
were applied to restate the 2020 financial statements. In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and
have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review or apply any procedures to the 2020
financial statements of the Estes Park Health other than with respect to the adjustments and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2020 financial statements as a whole.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated September 21, 2022.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with Estes Park Health, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, significant events or
transactions that occurred during the year, business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a
condition to our retention as Estes Park Health’s auditors.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Estes Park Medical Center Foundation,
a discretely presented component unit of Estes Park Health, which we considered to be a significant component
of the consolidated financial statements. Consistent with the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, our audit included obtaining an understanding of Estes Park Health and Estes Park Medical Center
Foundation and their environment, including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements of Estes Park Health and Estes Park Medical Center
Foundation and completion of further audit procedures.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of Estes
Park Health and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. We
will be happy to discuss these or any other topics at your convenience. We would like to take this opportunity to
express our appreciation to you and your staff for the fine cooperation we received during the course of the
audit. We look forward to many years of continued service to Estes Park Health.

&quﬂ

Denver, Colorado
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Estes Park, Colorado

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health (Medical
Center), which comprise the statements of net position as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and statements of cash flows, and the
statements of financial position and related statements of activities of its discretely presented
component unit Estes Park Medical Center Foundation dba Estes Park Health Foundation, as of and for
the years then ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Medical Center’s basic financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Estes Park Medical Center as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Medical Center and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Restatement of Prior Year Financial Statements

The financial statements of Estes Park Health as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, were
audited by other auditors, whose report dated April 27, 2021, contained an unmodified opinion on
those statements. As discussed in Note 12 to the financial statements, the 2020 financial statements
have been restated to correct a misstatement. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this
matter.
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As part of our audit of the 2021 financial statements, we also audited the adjustments described in Note
12 that were applied to restate the 2020 financial statements. In our opinion, such adjustments are
appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not engaged to audit, review or apply any
procedures to the 2020 financial statements of the Medical Center other than with respect to the
adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2020
financial statements as a whole.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Medical Center’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Medical Center’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a reasonable period of time.



We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
21, 2022 on our consideration of the Medical Center’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Medical Center’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

&M L7’

Denver, Colorado
September 21, 2022



Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Our discussion and analysis for Estes Park Health (Medical Center) provides an overview of the Medical Center’s
financial activities for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019. Please read it in conjunction
with the Medical Center’s financial statements, which begin on page 10.

Using This Annual Report

The Medical Center’s financial statements consist of three statements —a Statement of Net Position; a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and a Statement of Cash Flows. These financial
statements and related notes provide information about the activities of the Medical Center including resources
held by the Medical Center but restricted for specific purposes by contributors, grantors, or enabling legislation.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

One of the most important questions asked about the Medical Center’s finances is, “Is the Medical Center, as a
whole, better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position report information about the Medical Center’s resources and
its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all restricted and unrestricted
assets and all liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Medical Center’s net position and changes in them. You can think of the
Medical Center’s net position, the difference between assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflow of resources as one way to measure the Medical Center’s financial health, or financial position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the Medical Center’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as
changes in the Medical Center’s patient base and measures of the quality of service it provides to the
community, as well as local economic factors to access the overall health of the Medical Center.

The Statement of Cash Flows

The final required statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash receipts, cash
payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital financing and capital and
related financing activities. It provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash
used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.



Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Financial Highlights

Significant financial changes, which are explained in subsequent sections of Management’s Discussion and

Analysis, for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Year ended

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Change in operating revenues S 3,640,928

Change in operating expenses 1,417,963
Change in operating loss 2,222,965
Change in nonoperating

revenues (expenses) 10,830,082
Change in change in net position 12,705,191

The Medical Center’s Net Position

7.6%
2.6%
-31.4%

303.1%
-425.1%

(856,099)

3,000,162

(3,856,261)

694,045

(2,740,541)

-1.7%
5.7%
119.4%

24.1%
1104.9%

The Medical Center’s net position is the difference between its assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflow of resources in the Statement of Net Position on pages 10 and 11.

Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources
Current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net

Total assets
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Long-term debt outstanding
Other current and noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted, expendable
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net position

2021 2020 2019
29,358,184 29,895,515 S 31,637,443
14,306,607 14,379,177 2,299,525
30,195,401 32,139,581 31,746,460
73,860,192 76,414,273 65,683,428
13,615,984 14,900,000 13,485,000

8,025,565 19,012,242 6,704,073
21,641,549 33,912,242 20,189,073

3,115,979 3,115,979 3,119,724
24,757,528 37,028,221 23,308,797
16,354,373 17,239,581 18,261,460

3,919,972 3,915,919 1,412,536
28,828,319 18,230,552 22,700,635
49,102,664 39,386,052 42,374,631
73,860,192 76,414,273 S 65,683,428
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Results and Changes in the Medical Center’s Net Position

The following table highlights the Medical Center’s operations and changes in net position.

Operating Revenues
Net patient and resident service revenue
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits
Supplies and other
Professional fees and purchased services
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Property tax revenues
Provider Relief Funds
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Interest expense
Investment income (loss)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Noncapital contributions and grants

Business interruption insurance recovery and othel

Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses), net

Revenues in Excess of Expenses (Expenses in Excess
of Revenues) Before Capital Contributions
and Grants

Capital Grants and Contributions

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

2021 2020 2019
S 51,186,829 S 47,742,249 S 48,337,074
662,751 466,403 727,677
51,849,580 48,208,652 49,064,751
29,257,903 29,474,925 28,516,716
10,794,196 10,729,164 9,898,447
13,428,647 11,939,927 11,797,929
3,231,689 3,150,456 2,081,218
56,712,435 55,294,472 52,294,310
(4,862,855) (7,085,820) (3,229,559)
3,284,513 3,254,488 2,896,027
6,009,351 - -
4,800,000 = -
(416,164) (417,841) (395,453)
(93,819) 117,437 334,928
(49,750) = 8,500
57,866 526,206 23,021
811,556 93,181 12,403
14,403,553 3,573,471 2,879,426
9,540,698 (3,512,349) (350,133)
175,914 523,770 102,095
9,716,612 (2,988,579) (248,038)
39,386,052 42,374,631 42,622,669
S 49,102,664 S 39,386,052 S 42,374,631




Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Loss
The first component of the overall change in the Medical Center’s net position is its operating loss, generally, the
difference between net patient service revenues and the expenses incurred to perform those services. In 2021,

2020, and 2019, the Medical Center reported operating losses.

Changes in the primary components of operating results are:

Year ended December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Change in net patient and resident

service revenue S 3,444,580 7.2% S (594,825) '-1.2%
Change in salaries and benefits (217,022) -0.7% 958,209 3.4%
Change in supplies and other

expenses 65,032 0.6% 830,717 8.4%

The increase in net patient and resident service revenue from 2020 to 2021 was due to increase in volumes. The
decrease in net patient and resident service revenue from 2019 to 2020 was related to the ongoing pandemic.
Salary and benefit costs decreased in 2021 as a result of staffing limitations and management of expenses.
Supplies and other expenses increased in 2021 due to higher patient volumes and increased supply costs.

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) consist primarily of property tax revenue to support operations, interest
expense on debt, noncapital contributions and grants, gains (losses) on the disposal of capital assets, and
government program payments related to COVID-19. Changes in nonoperating revenues (expenses) are as
follows:

Year ended December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses), net S 10,830,082 303.1% S 694,045 24.1%

The Medical Center recognized approximately $6 million in Provider Relief Fund revenue, $4.8 million of
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness and $850,000 of business interruptioninsurance proceeds in
2021. The increase in 2020 is a result of increased property tax revenues.



Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Medical Center’s Cash Flows

Changes in the Medical Center’s cash flows are consistent with changes in operating income and nonoperating

revenues and expenses and Provider Relief Funding received.

Year ended 2021

2020

Change in net cash from operations S (3,672,936)

Change in net cash from non capital related
financing activities

Change in net cash used for capital and related
financing activities 78,651

Change in net cash from (used for) investing activities 12,226,788

(7,777,521)

Contacting the Medical Center’s Financial Management

S (1,042,086)
10,543,355

1,847,299
(19,392,636)

This financial report is designed to provide our patients, suppliers, and creditors with a general overview of the
Medical Center’s finances and to show the Medical Center’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
guestions about this report or need additional information, contact Estes Park Health Chief Financial Officer, 555

Prospect Avenue, Estes Park, Colorado, 80517.



Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
(Restated)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 11,842,577 8,225,705
Restricted cash under bond indenture agreement 3,919,972 3,915,919
Restricted cash under Provider Relief Funds - 5,370,111
Receivables
Patient, net of estimated uncollectibles of
approximately $674,000 in 2021 and $1,301,000 in 2020 7,150,118 5,934,941
Property Taxes and other 3,651,026 3,760,914
Estimated third-party payor settlements 911,702 845,198
Supplies 1,371,692 1,276,629
Prepaid expenses 511,097 566,098
Total current assets 29,358,184 29,895,515
Noncurrent Investments
Long-Term Investments 14,306,607 14,379,177
Total noncurrent investments 14,306,607 14,379,177
Capital Assets
Capital assets not being depreciated 1,250,662 526,650
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 28,944,739 31,612,931
Total capital assets 30,195,401 32,139,581

Total assets

See Notes to Financial Statements

S 73,860,192

S 76,414,273




Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Current maturities of capital leases
Accounts payable
Trade
Provider Relief Fund - refundable advance
Paycheck Protection Program loan
CMS Advance Payments
Accrued expenses
Salaries, wages, and related liabilities
Compensated absences

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long term debt, less current maturities
Capital leases, less current maturities

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Property Taxes

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted, expendable
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflow of resources,
and net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

2021 2020
(Restated)

240,807 S 178,114
49,476 -
3,403,970 2,580,955
- 5,370,111
- 4,800,000
2,325,936 4,381,398
1,182,176 1,095,658
888,439 784,120
8,090,804 19,190,356
13,375,177 14,721,886
175,568 -
13,550,745 14,721,886
21,641,549 33,912,242
3,115,979 3,115,979
16,354,373 17,239,581
3,919,972 3,915,919
28,828,319 18,230,552
49,102,664 39,386,052
73,860,192 S 76,414,273
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Revenues
Net patient and resident service revenue, net of provision for bad
debts of approximately $881,000 in 2021 and $650,000 in 2020
Other revenue

Total operating revenue

Operating Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies
Utilities and rent expense
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Other

Total operating expenses
Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Property tax revenues
Provider Relief Funds
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Interest expense
Investment income (loss)
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Noncapital contributions and grants
Business interruption insurance recovery and other
Nonoperating revenues, net

Revenues in Excess of (Less Than) Expenses Before
Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of the Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2021

2020

(Restated)

S 51,186,829

S 47,742,249

662,751 466,403
51,849,580 48,208,652
23,638,494 23,495,828

5,619,409 5,979,097
13,428,647 11,939,927
5,563,849 6,136,976
1,773,646 1,386,617
368,996 360,972
417,903 150,259
3,231,689 3,150,456
2,669,802 2,694,340
56,712,435 55,294,472
(4,862,855) (7,085,820)
3,284,513 3,254,488
6,009,351 -
4,800,000 s
(416,164) (417,841)
(93,819) 117,437
(49,750) .
57,866 526,206

811,556 93,181

14,403,553 3,573,471
9,540,698 (3,512,349)
175,914 523,770
9,716,612 (2,988,579)
39,386,052 42,374,631

S 49,102,664

S 39,386,052
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Activities
Receipts from and on behalf of patients and other
Payments to and on behalf of employees
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Other receipts and payments

Net Cash used for Operating Activities

Non Capital Related Financing Activities
Property taxes supporting operations
Business Interruption Insurance Recovery
HHS Provider Relief Fund
Paycheck Protection Program Loan
Non capital grants and contributions

Net Cash from Non Capital Financing Activities

Capital and Capital Related Financing Activities
Purchase and construction of capital assets
Issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments on debt obligations
Interest paid on debt obligations
Capital contributions

Net Cash used for Capital and Capital Related Financing Activities

Investing Activities
Sales (purchases) of investments, net
Investment income and other
Net Cash from (used for) Investing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2021 2020

S 49,905,148 S 50,960,878
(29,067,066) (22,641,734)
(26,638,689) (30,272,390)
662,751 488,326
(5,137,856) (1,464,920)
3,284,513 3,256,863
850,000 =
983,280 5,370,111

- 4,800,000

557,866 26,206
5,675,659 13,453,180

(1,060,337) (3,959,139)

269,971 2,500,000
(1,328,943) (1,085,000)
(416,164) (417,841)
175,914 523,770
(2,359,559) (2,438,210)

(99,452) (12,364,836)
172,022 210,618
72,570 (12,154,218)
(1,749,186) (2,604,168)
17,511,735 20,115,903

S 15,762,549 S 17,511,735
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

to the Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash under bond indenture agreement, current
Restricted cash under Provider Relief Fund

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash used for
Operating Activities
Operating Loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debts
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Changes in assets and liabilities
Patient receivables
Property tax receivables
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other receivables
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Paycheck Protection Program loan
Deferred revenue
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries, compensated absences, and other

Net Cash used for Operating Activities

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Capital assets included in accounts payable

See Notes to Financial Statements

2021 2020

$ 11,842,577 S 8,225,705
3,919,972 3,915,919

. 5,370,111

$ 15,762,549

S 17,511,735

S (4,862,855)

3,231,689
881,071
49,750

(4,151,710)
(764,115)
(95,063)

(66,504)
55,001

768,424
(183,544)

S (7,085,820)

3,150,456
650,166

(129,425)

(1,674,000
21,923
(180,421)
399,579
4,800,000
(428,112)
(191,801)
(797,465)

$ (5,137,856)

S (1,464,920)

S 276,922

S 842,789
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health

Statements of Financial Position—Discretely Presented Component Unit

Estes Park Medical Center Foundation

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Promises to give
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Other Assets
Promises to give, less current portion
Property plant and equipment, net
Investments
Trust receivable
Total other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Refundable advance- Paycheck Protection Program
Total current liabilities
Net Position
Unrestricted
Restricted, expendable

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See Notes to Financial Statements

2021 2020
S 489,082 S 49,697
55,574 50,677
1,273 1,273
545,929 101,647
93,475 7,373
4,792 5,355
4,629,271 3,829,052
- 109,036
4,727,538 3,950,816
S 5,273,467 S 4,052,463
S 212,463 S 31,126
- 54,210
212,463 85,336
2,042,095 1,272,094
3,018,909 2,695,033
5,061,004 3,967,127
S 5,273,466 S 4,052,462
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets—Discretely Presented Component Unit
Estes Park Medical Center Foundation

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Revenues and Other Support Without Donor Restrictions
Contributions S 170,786 S 98,705
Net investment return 372,536 230,717
PPP loan forgiveness 92,722 -
Net assets released from restrictions 679,781 842,769
Total Revenue and Gains 1,315,825 1,172,191
Expenses
Grants and Contributions to Estes Park Heath 194,610 620,933
Salaries and benefits 280,337 269,487
Advertising and marketing 34,595 19,349
Professional fees 13,674 13,951
Office and other 22,608 17,961
Total Expenses 545,824 941,681
Change in Unrestricted Net Position 770,001 230,510
Restricted Net Position
Contributions 686,398 350,629
Restricted investment income 317,259 232,571
Net position released from restrictions (679,781) (842,769)
Change in Restricted Net Position 323,876 (259,569)
Change in Net Position 1,093,877 (29,059)
Net Position, Beginning of the year 3,967,127 3,996,186
Net Position, End of Year S 5,061,004 S 3,967,127

See Notes to Financial Statements 15



Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note 1- Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health (Medical Center) have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting and reporting policies
and practices used by the Medical Center are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Medical Center operates a 16-bed acute care facility (Hospital); the Prospect Park Retirement Center
(Retirement Center); and the Family Medical Center (Clinic), located in Estes Park, Colorado. During 2021, the
Retirement Center was closed and residents were transferred to other facilities for care. The Medical Center is
organized as a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and has been recognized by the Internal Revenue
Service as exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(a). The Medical Center is
governed by a Board of Directors consisting of five members elected by the residents of Park Hospital District.
The Medical Center is not a component unit of another governmental entity.

For financial reporting purposes, the Medical Center has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions, and authorities. The Medical Center has also considered all potential component units for which it
is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the Medical Center are such that the exclusion would cause the Medical Center’s financial situation to be
misleading or incomplete. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1)
the ability of the Medical Center to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization
to provide specific benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on the Medical Center.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Estes Park Medical Center Foundation (Foundation) is a 501(c)(3) organization whose sole purpose is to
support the Medical Center. The Foundation conducts fundraising campaigns on behalf of the Medical Center. In
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus, the Foundation has been determined to be a component unit and is presented as a discretely
presented component unit in the Medical Center’s financial statements. Complete financial statements of the
Foundation may be obtained by contacting the Foundation’s Executive Office.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the

financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recognized when
earned, and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred.

Basis of Presentation

The statement of net position displays the Medical Center’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows, with the difference reported as net position. Net position is reported in the following components:

Net investment in capital assets consists of net capital assets reduced by the outstanding balances of any related
debt obligations and deferred inflows or resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets or related debt obligations and increased by balances of deferred outflows of resources related
to those assets or debt obligations.

Restricted net position:

Expendable — Expendable net position results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally
imposed or imposed through enabling legislation.

Nonexpendable — Nonexpendable net position is subject to externally imposed stipulations which require them
to be maintained permanently by the Medical Center.

Unrestricted net position consists of net position not meeting the definition of the preceding categories.
Unrestricted net position often has constraints on resources imposed by management, which can be removed or
modified.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), the
Medical Center’s policy is to first apply the expense toward the most restrictive resources and then toward
unrestricted resources.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less,
excluding internally designated or restricted cash and investments. For purposes of the statement of cash flows,
the Medical Center’s considers all cash and investments with an original maturity of three months or less as cash
and cash equivalents.

Patient Receivables, Net

Patient and resident receivables are uncollateralized patient and third-party payor obligations. Payments of
patient and resident receivables are allocated to the specific claims identified in the remittance advice or, if
unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid claim.

The carrying amount of patient and resident receivables is reduced by a valuation allowance that reflects
management’s estimate of amounts that will not be collected from patients, residents, and third-party payors.
Management reviews patient and resident receivables by payor class and applies percentages to determine
estimated amounts that will not be collected from third parties under contractual agreements and amounts that
will not be collected from patients and residents due to bad debts. Management considers historical write off
and recovery information in determining the estimated bad debt provision.

Property Tax Receivable and Revenues
Property tax receivable represents taxes certified by the County Commissioners of Larimer County to be
collected in the next fiscal year. Taxes are assessed on January 1 and are due in one installment on April 30 or in

two installments on February 28 and June 15 of each year. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
year for which the taxes are levied.

Supplies

Supplies are stated at lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and are expensed when used.

Noncurrent Cash and Investments

Noncurrent cash and investments includes unrestricted and undesignated investments, internally designated
investments which are set aside by the Board of Directors for future capital improvements and debt retirement,
over which the Board retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes, and cash
and investments restricted by donors. Investments are measured at fair value.

Investment Income

Interest, dividends, gains and losses, both realized and unrealized, on investments and deposits are included in
nonoperating revenues when earned.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Capital Assets

Property and equipment acquisitions in excess of $5,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of each depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method. Equipment under capital lease obligations is amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter
period of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the equipment. Amortization is included in the
depreciation and amortization in the financial statements. The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as
follows:

Land improvements 8-40 years
Buildings and improvements 5-40 years
Equipment 3-25 years

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as additions to unrestricted net
position and are excluded from revenues in excess of expenses. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted net position.

Compensated Absences

The Medical Center's employees earn paid time-off (PTO) days for vacation and sick leave at varying rates
depending on years of service. Employees may accumulate PTO up to a specified maximum. Employees are paid
for accumulated PTO upon termination.

Estimated Health Claims Payable

The Medical Center provides for self-insurance reserves for estimated incurred but not reported claims for its
employee health plan. These reserves, which are included in current liabilities on the statement of net position,
are estimated based upon historical submission and payment data, cost trends, utilization history, and other
relevant factors. Adjustments to reserves are reflected in the operating results in the period in which the change
in estimate is identified.

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources represent an increase in net position that applies to future periods and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The deferred inflow of resources reported in the

financial statements are unavailable property taxes. The property taxes will be recognized as revenue in the year
in which the taxes are levied and become available.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Medical Center’s statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position distinguishes between
operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses of the Medical Center
result from exchange transactions associated with providing health care services - the Medical Center’s principal
activity, and the costs of providing those services, including depreciation and amortization and excluding
interest cost. All other revenues and expenses are reported as nonoperating.

Net Patient and Resident Service Revenue

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Medical Center at
amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined rates,
reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Net patient and resident service revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, residents, third-party payors, and others for
services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are
rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Colorado Healthcare Affordability and Sustainability Enterprise

The Medical Center participates in the Colorado Healthcare Affordability and Sustainability Enterprise (CHASE),
approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), under which all hospitals in the state are
assessed a fee based on bed size and payor mix. The State of Colorado uses the fees to supplement state budget
funds for the Medicaid program, which brings matching federal monies into the program, enabling the State of
Colorado to fund Medicaid payments to hospitals at a higher rate than would otherwise be possible. The
Medical Center paid approximately $1,128,624 and $1,244,571 in CHASE fees for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020, which were recorded in operating expenses. The Medical Center received approximately
$3,436,458 and $3,738,921 of supplemental payments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, which
are recorded as part of net patient service revenue.

Grants and Contributions

The Medical Center may receive grants as well as contributions from individuals and private organizations.
Revenues from grants and contributions (including contributions of capital assets) are recognized when all
eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Grants and contributions may be restricted for
either specific operating purposes or for capital purposes. Amounts that are unrestricted or that are restricted
to a specific operating purpose are reported as nonoperating revenues. Amounts restricted to capital
acquisitions are reported after expenses in excess of revenues.

Budgets
The Medical Center adopts an annual budget in accordance with Colorado Statutes. The budgeted revenue and

expenditures are used by management as a control device during the year. Budgets are adopted on a basis that
is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note 2 - Net Patient Service Revenue

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the Medical Center at
amounts different from its established rates. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party
payors follows:

Acute Care Facility

Medicare — The Medical Center is licensed as a Critical Access Hospital (CAH). The Medical Center is reimbursed
for most acute care services under a cost reimbursement methodology with final settlement determined after
submission of annual cost reports by the Medical Center and are subject to audits thereof by the Medicare
Administrative Contractor (MAC). The Medical Center’s Medicare cost reports have been audited by the MAC
through the year ended December 31, 2019. Clinical services are paid on a cost basis or fixed fee schedule.

Medicaid — Inpatient services and outpatient services after November 1, 2016 rendered to Medicaid program
beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Outpatient services prior to
November 1, 2016 related to Medicaid beneficiaries are paid at interim rates based on Medicaid cost-to-charge
ratio. Retrospective settlements based on audited cost-to-charge ratios are made periodically.

Commercial—The Medical Center has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers and other organizations. The basis for payment to the Medical Center under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively determined
daily rates.

Long-Term Care

Resident service revenue was recorded at established billing rates that were determined on a cost-related basis
subject to certain limitations as prescribed by Colorado Department of Human Services regulations. These rates
are subject to retroactive adjustment by field audit. The Retirement Center participated in the Medicare program
for which payment for services was made on a prospectively determined per diem rate, which varied, based on a
case-mix adjusted patient classification system. The differences between actual charges and payments were
accounted for as contractual adjustments.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Concentration of gross revenues by major payor accounted for the following percentages of the Medical Center’s
patient service revenues for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Medicare 39% 39%
Medicaid 13% 14%
Other third-party payors 45% 43%
Self pay 3% 1%
100% 100%

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid, and other programs are extremely complex and subject
to interpretation. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term. Net patient service revenue increased $298,000 for the year ended December
31, 2021 and decreased approximately $307,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020 due to the change in the
allowances previously estimated that are no longer necessary as a result of final settlements and years that are
no longer likely subject to audits, reviews, and investigations.

CMS Advance Payments

The CMS Advance Payments balance consists of advance payments received from the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS), in order to increase cash flow for Medicare Part A providers who were impacted by the
COVID-19 pandemic. The Medical Center received $4,381,398 in advance payments during 2020, which will be
recouped through the Medicare claims processed beginning 365 days after the date of issuance of each advance
payment. This recoupment process will continue until the balance of the advance payments has been recouped
or for 29 months from the date that each advance payment was issued, at which point any remaining unpaid
balance is due. The advance payments balance is non-interest bearing through the 29-month repayment period.
The remaining amount is expected to be recouped in the next 12 months and is included in current liabilities in
the accompanying balance sheets.

Note 3 - Provider Relief Funds

The Medical Center received $6,009,351 of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act Provider
Relief Funds administered by the Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). The funds are subject to
terms and conditions imposed by HHS. Among the terms and conditions is a provision that payments will only be
used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus and shall reimburse the recipient only for healthcare-
related expenses or lost revenues that are attributable to coronavirus. Recipients may not use the payments to
reimburse expenses or losses that have been reimbursed from other sources or that other sources are obligated
to reimburse. HHS currently has deadlines for incurring eligible expenses and lost revenues, varying based on the
date the Medical Center received the funds. Unspent funds will be expected to be repaid.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

These funds are recorded as a refundable advance when received and are recognized as revenues in the
accompanying statements of operations as all terms and conditions are considered met. The terms and
conditions are subject to interpretation, changes and future clarification, the most recent of which have been
considered through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued. In addition, this program
may be subject to oversight, monitoring and audit. Failure by a provider that received a payment from the
Provider Relief Fund to comply with any term or condition can subject the provider to recoupment of some or all
of the payment. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Medical Center had refundable
advance balances of $0 and $5,370,111 which were included in current liabilities on the accompanying balance
sheets.

Note 4 - Deposits and Investments

The carrying amounts of deposits and investments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020
Carrying amount
Cash and deposits S 15,762,549 $ 17,511,735
Long-term investments 14,306,607 14,379,177
Total S 30,069,156 S 31,890,912

Deposits and investments are reported in the following statement of net position captions:

2021 2020
Included in the following statement of financial position captions
Cash and cash equivalents S 11,842,577 S 8,225,705
Restricted cash 3,919,972 , 9,286,030
Long-term investments 14,306,607 14,379,177

S 30,069,156 S 31,890,912

Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure or investment company failure, the Medical
Center's deposits may not be returned to it. The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all
units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulations.
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as
determined by the PDPA. The Medical Center’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with
the provisions of state law.

PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds held. The pool is to be
maintained by another institution, or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value
of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Medical Center’s deposits in banks were entirely covered by federal depository insurance and PDPA.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Investments

The Medical Center’s long-term investments are reported at fair value. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Medical Center’s investments consisted of the following:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less
Investment Type Amount Rating Than 1 1-5 6-10
Municipal Bonds S 440,428 AAA S - S 440,428 S -
Government Securities 11,723,668 AA- to AA+ - 11,723,668 -
Corporate Bonds 2,142,511 AA- to AA+ 707,049 1,435,462
S 14,306,607 S 707,049 S 13,599,558 S -
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less
Investment Type Amount Rating Than 1 1-5 6-10
Municipal Bonds 462,976 AAA - S 462,976 S
Government Securities 11,083,000 AA- to AA+ 11,083,000
Corporate Bonds 2,833,201 AA-to AA+ 717,639 2,115,562 -
S 14,379,177 S 717,639 S 13,661,538 S -

The Medical Center uses fair value to measure investments. Cash and cash equivalents held for investment
purposes is measured at cost. Government securities and Corporate bonds are considered Level 2, which are
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fairvalue to
changes in market interest rates. The Medical Center’s investment policy does not contain a provision that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit Risk
State Statutes limits the investment in bonds, debentures or notes of any corporation to be rated “A” or higher
by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Medical Center

was compliant with State Statutes with regard to credit risk. The Medical Center has no investment policy that
would further limit its investment options.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note 5- Capital Assets

Capital asset additions, transfers, retirements, and balances for the year ended December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

Balance, Transfers and Balance,
December 31, 2020 Additions Disposals December 31, 2021
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land S 513,973 S - S - S 513,973
Construction in progress 12,677 1,339,637 (615,625) 736,689
Total capital assets not being
depreciated S 526,650 S 1,339,637 S (615,625) S 1,250,662
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements S 881,009 S - S (35,824) S 845,185
Building 43,071,694 - (797,753) 42,273,941
Equipment and vehicles 11,833,788 5,802 238,825 12,078,415
55,786,491 S 5,802 S (594,752) 55,197,541
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements (726,744) S (29,219) S 35,824 (720,139)
Building (16,920,012) (1,356,520) 793,061 (17,483,471)
Equipment and vehicles (6,526,804) (1,845,952) 323,564 (8,049,192)
Total accumulated
depreciation (24,173,560) $(3,231,691) S 1,152,449 (26,252,802)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net S 31,612,931 S 28,944,739
Total capital assets, net S 32,139,581 S 30,195,401
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Capital asset additions, transfers, retirements, and balances for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as

follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements

Buildings and leasehold improvemen

Equipment

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements

Building and leasehold improvement

Equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Note 6 - Lease Obligations

Balance,

Transfers and

Balance,

December 31, 2019 Additions Disposals December 31, 2020
S 513,973 S - S - S 513,973
818,374 3,543,176 (4,348,873) 12,677
S 1,332,347 S 3,543,176 S (4,348,873) S 526,650
$ 881,009 S - S - S 881,009
40,218,545 - 2,853,149 43,071,694
13,135,596 - (1,301,808) 11,833,788
54,235,150 S $ 1,551,341 55,786,491
(694,649) (32,095) . (726,744)
(15,631,618) (1,288,394) - (16,920,012)
(7,494,770) (1,829,566) 2,797,532 (6,526,804)
(23,821,037) $(3,150,055) S 2,797,532 (24,173,560)
S 30,414,113 S 31,612,931
S 31,746,460 S 32,139,581

The Medical Center leases certain equipment under noncancellable long-term lease agreements. These leases
have been recorded as capitalized leases. The capitalized leased assets consist of:

Major movable equipment

Less accumulated amortization

2021
S 157,873
(51,363)
$ 106,510

26



Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Minimum future lease payments for the capital leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2022 S 51,186
2023 53,658
2024 56,252
2025 58,973
2026 4,975
Total minimum lease payments 225,044
Less interest (22,853)
Present value of minimum lease payments S 202,191

Note 7- Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan

The Medical Center was granted a $4,800,000 loan under the PPP administered by a Small Business
Administration (SBA) approved partner. The loan is uncollateralized and is fully guaranteed by the Federal
government. The Medical Center initially recorded a note payable and subsequently recorded forgiveness when
the loan obligation was legally released by the SBA. The Entity recognized $4,800,000 of loan forgiveness income
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Note 8- Long-Term Debt

A schedule of changes in the Medical Center’s long-term debt for 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Balance, Reductions Balance, Due Within
December 31, 2020 Additions or Payments December 31, 2021 One Year
Promissory Notes, Series 2016 $ 12,400,000 S - $ (1,105,000) $ 11,295,000 S -
2020 Promissory Note 2,500,000 - (179,016) 2,320,984 240,807
PPP Loan 4,800,000 - (4,800,000) - -
S 19,700,000 S = S (6,084,016) S 13,615,984 S 240,807
Balance, Reductions Balance, Due Within
December 31, 2019 Additions or Payments December 31, 2020 One Year
Promissory Notes, Series 2016 S 13,485,000 S - S (1,085,000) S 12,400,000 S -
2020 Promissory Note - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 178,114
PPP Loan - 4,800,000 - 4,800,000 4,800,000

$ 13,485,000 S 7,300,000 $ (1,085,000) $ 19,700,000 S 4,978,114
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Line of Credit

The Medical Center entered into a line of credit agreement with a financial institution that provides for the
available borrowings of $3,000,000. The agreement matured in August 2021 and was not renewed. There were
no amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Promissory Notes, Series 2016

During 2016, the Medical Center refinanced its Limited Tax-Revenue Bonds Series 2006 (Bonds) with Promissory
Notes, Series 2016 (Notes). The Notes bear interest of 1.85% and 2.90% with the interest being paid semiannually
on each January 1 and July 1 and principal being due in varying annual installments through December 31, 2031.
The Notes are secured by the Medical Center’s pledged revenues. The Medical Center made principal payments
due on January 1 of the subsequent year, thus there is no current portion of long-term debt shown in the
financial statements.

2020 Promissory Note

The Medical Center has a note payable with a financial institution for $2,500,000, the proceeds of which were
used to fund the construction of the Urgent Care Clinic buildout. Beginning April 30, 2021, monthly payments of
$22,361 are due through maturity of March 30, 2031. Interest accrues at the Bank of Colorado Estes Park 12-
month Public Funds Certificate of Deposit Rate plus 1% (1.01% and 1.10% as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively). The promissory note is secured by a certificate of deposit held be the financial institution.

Restrictive Covenants

Under the terms of the 2016 and 2020 promissory notes, the Medical Center is required to maintain certain
deposits with the lenders. Such deposits are included in restricted cash under debt agreement on the statement
of net position. The promissory note agreements also require the Medical Center satisfy certain financial and
nonfinancial covenants. The Medical Center was not in compliance with the debt-service coverage ratio
requirement as of December 31, 2020 and received a waiver from the lender. The Medical Center was not in
compliance with a nonfinancial requirement to provide audited financial statements within 180 days and
received a waiver from the lender for 2021.

Scheduled debt service requirements for the Medical Center’s long-term debt are as follows:

Long-Term Debt

Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2022 S 240,807 328,767 S 569,574
2023 1,368,250 307,853 1,676,103
2024 1,385,719 282,219 1,667,938
2025 1,423,212 248,375 1,671,587
2026 1,460,730 213,316 1,674,046
2027-2031 7,737,266 2,095,895 9,833,161

Total S 13,615,984 S 3,476,425 S 17,092,409
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note 9- Pension Plan

The Medical Center has a defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees who meet age and hour
requirements. Employer contributions to the plan are based on a percentage of eligible employee compensation
for plan participants. Total pension expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020, and 2019 was
$1,375,388, 51,507,341 and 51,430,030, respectively.

Note 10 - Concentrations

The Medical Center grants credit without collateral to its patients and residents, most of whom are insured under
third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from third-party payors, patients, and residents at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows:

2021 2020
Medicare 35% 28%
Medicaid 7% 7%
Blue Cross 9% 15%
Other third-party payors 20% 18%
Self pay 29% 32%
100% 100%

Note 11 - Contingencies
COVID-19 Pandemic

During 2020 and 2021, the world-wide coronavirus pandemic impacted national and global economies. The
Medical Center is closely monitoring its operations, liquidity and capital resources and is actively working to
minimize the current and future impact of this unprecedented situation. As of the date of issuance of these
financial statements, the current and future full impact to the Medical Center is not known.

Risk Management

The Medical Center is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft or damage of assets; business
interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee health,
dental, and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters
other than employee health claims. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the

three preceding years.
Malpractice Insurance

The Medical Center has malpractice insurance coverage to provide protection for professional liability losses on a
claims-made basis subject to a limit of $1 million per claim and an annual aggregate limit of $3 million. Should the
claims-made policy not be renewed or replaced with equivalent insurance, claims based on occurrences during its

term, but reported subsequently, would be uninsured.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Litigation, Claims, and Disputes

The Medical Center is subject to the usual contingencies in the normal course of operations relating to the
performance of its tasks under its various programs. In the opinion of management, the ultimate settlement of
any litigation, claims, and disputes in process will not be material to the financial position, operations, or cash
flows of the Medical Center.

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local governments.
Compliance with these laws and regulations, specifically those relating to the Medicare and Medicaid programs,
can be subject to government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown and unasserted
at this time. Federal government activity with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
violations by health care providers of regulations could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
as well as significant repayments of previously billed and collected revenues from patient and resident services.

Self-Funded Health Plan

The Medical Center is self-funded for health benefits for eligible employees and their dependents. The Medical
Center, in connection with this plan, recognizes health benefit expenses on an accrual basis. An accrued liability is
recorded at year-end, which estimates the incurred but not reported claims that will be paid by the Medical
Center. The Medical Center has stop loss insurance to cover catastrophic claims in excess of $75,000 per claim
and an annual aggregate limit of $4,438,841 for the plan year ended December 31, 2021.

The Medical Center expenses amounts representing the employer’s portion of actual claims paid, adjusted for the
estimates of liabilities relating to claims resulted from services provided prior to the fiscal year end not to exceed

the annual aggregate expense. The estimated liability is included in accrued expenses in the financial statements.

These amounts have been estimated based on historical trends and actuarial analysis.

Changes in the balance of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:

Current Year Claims

Beginning and Changes Claim Ending

Year Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
2021 S 300,000 S 3,343,322 S (3,266,873) S 376,449
2020 300,000 3,640,373 (3,640,373) 300,000

Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan Review

The Medical Center applied for and received loan forgiveness from the SBA on its PPP loan in 2021. In accordance
PPP loan requirements, the Medical Center is required to maintain PPP loan files and certain underlying
supporting documents for periods ranging from three to six years. The Medical Center is also required to permit
access to such files upon request by the SBA. Accordingly, there is potential the PPP loan could be subject to
further review by the SBA and that previously recognized forgiveness could be reversed based on this review.
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December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note 12 - Restatement

During the year ended December 31, 2021, it was determined that the previously issued financial statements
contained an error as of December 31, 2020 related to the reporting of revenue from a cost reimbursement
grant.

The following is a summary of the effects of the correction of the error in the Medical Center’s December 31,
2020 statement of net position:

As Previously Correction
Reported of Error As Restated
As of December 31, 2020

Property Taxes and other S 3,260,914 S 500,000 S 3,760,914
Total current assets © 29,395,515 500,000 29,895,515
Total assets 75,914,273 500,000 76,414,273
Unrestricted net position 17,730,552 500,000 18,230,552
Total net position 38,886,052 500,000 39,386,052
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and net position 75,914,273 500,000 76,414,273

The following is a summary of the effects of the correction of the error in the Medical Center’s December 31, 2020
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position:

As Previously Correction
Reported of Error As Restated
Year ended December 31, 2020

Noncapital contributions and grants S 26,206 S 500,000 S 526,206
Total nonoperating revenues, net 3,073,471 500,000 3,573,471
Revenues in Excess of (Less Than) Expenses Before

Capital Contributions (4,012,349) 500,000 (3,512,349)
Decrease in net position (3,488,579) 500,000 (2,988,579)
Net position, end of year 38,886,052 500,000 39,386,052
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses — Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Variance
Favorable/
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating Revenue
Net patient and resident service revenue S 49,146,913 S 51,186,829 S 2,039,916
Other revenue 469,650 662,751 193,101
Total operating revenue 49,616,563 51,849,580 2,233,017
Nonoperating Revenues (Expense)
Property tax revenues 3,200,000 3,284,513 84,513
Interest expense (396,000) (416,164) 20,164
Capital contributions 300,000 175,914 124,086
Noncapital contributions and grants 100,000 57,866 (42,134)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (10,000) (49,750) (39,750)
Investment income (loss) 88,500 (93,819) (182,319)
Other 240,100 811,556 571,456
PPP loan forgiveness - 4,800,000 4,800,000
Provider Relief Funds - 6,009,351 6,009,351
Total nonoperating revenue (expense), net 3,522,600 14,579,467 11,345,367
Total revenues S 53,139,163 S 66,429,047 S 13,578,384
Expenses
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits S 31,041,134 S 29,257,903 S 1,783,231
Supplies and other 9,914,362 10,794,196 (879,834)
Professional fees and purchased services 9,685,791 13,428,647 (3,742,856)
Depreciation and amortization 3,147,937 3,231,689 (83,752)
Total expenses 53,789,224 56,712,435 (2,923,211)
Debt Retirement
Principal paid - 1,284,016 1,284,016
Total expenditures S 53,789,224 S 57,996,451 S (1,639,195)

Notes to Schedule:

Annual budgets are adopted as required by Colorado Statute. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a
management control device during the year. Budgets are adopted on a basis that is consistent with

generally accepted accounting principles.

Appropriations are adopted by resolutions in total. For the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no

additional resolutions for supplementary budget and appropriation.

Management believes that the Medical Center is compliant with the rules of Colorado’s Taxpayer’s Bill of

Rights (TABOR).
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Estes Park, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Park Hospital District
dba Estes Park Health (the Medical Center) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Park Hospital District dba Estes
Park Health’s basic financial statements and the statements of financial position and related statements
of activities of its discretely presented component unit, the Estes Park Medical Center Foundation dba
Estes Park Health Foundation, and have issued our report thereon dated September 21, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Medical Center’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Medical Center’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a
material weakness.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Medical Center’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Medical Center’s Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Medical
Center’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The Medical Center’s response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Medical Center’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Medical Center’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

é’c/{ﬁ%zz.?p

Denver, Colorado
September 21, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Estes Park, Colorado

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program
Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited, Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health’s (the Medical Center) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on the Medical Center’s major federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2021. The Medical Center’s major federal program is identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Medical Center complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Medical Center and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for the major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Medical Center’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements
of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Medical Center’s federal program.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Medical Center’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about the Medical Center’s compliance with the requirements of its major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we: :

¢ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Medical Center’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

+ Obtain an understanding of the Medical Center’s internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Medical Center’s
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on internal Control over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we did
identify a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-002
to be a significant deficiency.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Medical
Center’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Medical Center’s response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the Medical Center as of and for the year ended December
31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Estes Park
Health’s basic financial statements and the statements of financial position and related statements of
activities of its discretely presented component unit, the Estes Park Medical Center Foundation dba
Estes Park Health Foundation. We issued our report thereon dated September 21, 2022, which
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic -
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

é‘//ﬁw%za?”

Denver, Colorado
September 21, 2022
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Financial Pass-through
Assistance Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Listing/Federal Identifying
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title CFDA Number Number Expenditures

Department of Health and Human Services
COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue
Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution

Total Federal Financial Assistance

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

93.498 N/A S 5,376,071
S 5,376,071
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal award activity
of Park Hospital District dba Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health (the Medical Center) under programs of
the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2021. The information is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of the Medical Center, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Medical Center.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. When applicable, such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain

types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. No federal financial assistance has
been provided to a subrecipient.

Note 3 - Indirect Cost Rate

The Medical Center has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate.

Note 4 — Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan Rural Distribution

The Medical Center received amounts from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) through
the Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution (PRF) program (Federal Financial
Assistance Listing/CFDA #93.498) during the year ended December 31, 2020 totaling $5,376,071. In accordance
with the 2021 compliance supplement, the PRF expenditures were not recognized on the schedule until the
expenditures were included in the reporting for Period 1 and Period 2 to HHS for the calendar year ended
December 31, 2021, as required under the PRF program. This resulted in $5,376,071 being recognized in the
schedule for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

The following summarizes the Provider Relief Funds and the timing of when the amounts were recognized in the

financial statements:

Federal Department/Program Title/Grant Name
Department of Health and Human Services
Health Resources and Services Administration

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American
Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution -
Period 1

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American
Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution -
Period 2

Total COVID-19 Provider Relief Funds and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution S

Amounts
Federal Recognized in
Financial Accordance with
Assistance GAAP for the
Listing/Federal Year Ended
CFDA Number December 31, 2021
93.498 S 5,284,602
93.498 91,469
5,376,071

The amount of PRF expenditures included in the schedule requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporting amounts. Accordingly, such expenditures are considered a significant
estimate. Estimates and assumptions may include reducing actual expenses by amounts that have been
reimbursed, or are obligated to be reimbursed by other sources, and estimating marginal increases in expenses
related to Coronavirus. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiency identified not

considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified
Significant deficiency identified not

considered to be material weaknesses

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs

Unmodified

Yes
None Reported

No

No
Yes

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516(a):

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Yes

Federal Financial
Assistance
Listing/Federal

CFDA Number

93.498
$750,000

No
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

2021-001

Preparation of Financial Statements and Material Audit Adjustments
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criteria — A properly designed system of internal control over financial reporting includes
preparation of an entity’s financial statements and accompanying notes by internal personnel of
the entity as well as having an adequate system for recording and processing adjusting journal
entries material to the financial statements. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal control over financial reporting and procedures related to the fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).

Condition — Due to employee turnover, the Medical Center did not have a consistent internal
control system designed to provide for the preparation of financial statements being audited,
including related disclosures and preparation of the cash flow statement in accordance with
GAAP. As part of our audit, we proposed significant audit adjustments, including a restatement
to the prior financial statements that were not detected by management.

Cause — This deficiency is partially due to the limited resources in the financial reporting process
due to employee turnover. Furthermore, management has elected to have the financial
statements and footnotes prepared by the auditors as part of the audit, which were then
reviewed by management. The proposed audit adjustments are due to management turnover
and lacking consistent reconciliation procedures which would detect and allow for the
correction of these errors.

Effect — This control deficiency resulted in misstatements to the financial statements and could
result in required information being omitted from the financial statements. Furthermore, it is
possible that new standards may not be adopted and applied timely to the interim financial
reporting.

Recommendation — We recommend that management continue reviewing operating
procedures, including month-end and year-end closing procedures, in order to obtain the
maximum internal control over financial reporting possible under the circumstances to enable
staff to reconcile and record the necessary adjustments prior to the audit.

Views of Responsible Officials — Management accepts the risk associated with assistance with
the preparation of the audited financial statements by the independent auditor. Due to cost
constraints, management will continue to have the auditors draft the financial statements and
accompanying notes to the financial statements. Management will identify the necessary
journal entries and develop a process to record entries accurately and timely.
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Park Hospital District dba Estes Park Health
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
December 31, 2021

Section lIl - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2021-002

Department of Health and Human Services

Federal Financial Assistance Listing/CFDA #93.498

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural Distribution
Applicable Federal Award Number and Year — Period 1 TIN #840601621

Reporting
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance

Criteria: 2 CFR 200.303(a) establishes that the auditee must establish and maintain effective
internal control over the federal award that provides assurance that the entity is managing the
federal award in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and conditions of the federal
award.

Condition: The Medical Center’s special reports submitted to the Department of Health and
Human Services for Period 1 and Period 2 were not reviewed and approved by a separate

individual outside of the preparer. We noted no errors in testing.

Cause: There was no documentation a separate review and approval of the Period 1 and Period
2 reports was completed prior to submission to the Department of Health and Human Services.

Effect: Without a secondary review and approval, there is a possibility that ineligible
expenditures may be claimed under the program and the report may not be accurately
completed.

Questioned Costs: None reported.

Context/Sampling: Key line items were tested on the Period 1 and Period 2 special reports
submitted to the Department of Health and Human Services.

Repeat Finding from Prior Year: No

Recommendation — We recommend that management implement processes to ensure review
and approval of future reports.

Views of Responsible Officials — Management agrees and will ensure future reports are reviewed
by an individual separate from the preparer.
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ESTES PARK HEALTH JUNE, 2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net patient service revenue is over budget for the month of June by $311,812 and under budget for the
six months ended June 30" by $937,327. Included in both of these amounts is an accrual for about
$600,000 related to the Medicare payment, received in September, to catch up our payment rates for
the first six months of 2022.

Contractuals and other write offs for June are under budget by $368,042 and over budget by $261,067
for the first six months. This is net of the approximate $600,000 noted in the last sentence of the prior
item.

Operating expenses are over budget by $1,183,088 for June 2022 and $482,253 for the first six months.
A good portion of the June variance is the partial catch up of old invoices as the new accounts payable
person started in early July.

The common theme of negative contract labor (included in professional fees and purchased services)

variances continues in June. We’re $632,072 over budget for the month of June and $1,639,528 over
budget for the first six months of 2022. For the first six months of 2022, we’re $2,602,297 higher than
the first six months of 2021.

The largest variance in the June 2022 supplies is about $195,000 related to bacteriology expense in lab.
New rapid sepsis blood culture test kits and expensive molecular test kits were ordered.

The negative variance of $101,564 in other expenses for June 2022 is primarily recruitment expenses.

The operating loss of the month of June 2022 is $779,206 or $891,252 over budget. The year to date
operating loss is $7,829,733 or $1,537,126 over budget.

The investment income is a negative (unrealized losses) $637,501 for the month of June 2022. The last
time investments were adjusted was December 31, 2021. This results in an unrealized loss of about 4%
for the first six months of 2022. This is also the primary reason for the decrease in investments on the
balance sheet in June 2022.

The $754,792 budgeted other nonoperating revenue in June 2022 is a partial recognition of the 2022
budgeted Federal grants.

On the balance sheet, the large increase in accounts payable is the partial catch up of old invoices as
noted in the operating expense section above.

DAYS CASH ON HAND AT 06.30.22 139 days
ADJUSTED DAYS CASH ON HAND AT JUNE 30, 2022

(adding in $2,200,000 unusual items—cost report

settlement, Medicare lump sum adjustment

and Foundation money for MRI) 151 days



ESTES PARK HEALTH
Balance Shaat {Unauditad) Statements of Net Posltion

tune 30,2022
Row
500 2022 lune 032 Wy 2021 Dac 2021 lune
({2022 Jun) - ({2022 Jun) - {2022 Juny -
Actual Actual mié;‘z‘"M':':“s {2022 May)) + Actual 202220‘2"1";:':“5 (2021 Dec)) + Actual mz;njz"i";:r'."“ (2021 Jun) +
c00 ABS[2022 May) ABS(2021 Dec) ABS(2021 Jun)
700 ASSETS
800
9,00 CURRENT ASSETS
1000 Cash and Cash Equivalents 5232,959 | 6498740  (1266,781)  (195%) 11,911,938 (6,678,979)  (361%) 16,087,985 (10,855,026)  (67.5%)
1100 Restricted Cash Under Debt Agreements 3,920,597 | 3,920,503 34 00% 3,919,973 624 00% 3,919,204 1,393 a0%
1200 Receivables . na+0
Patlent and Resldent, Net of Estimated Uncollectables of
13.00 approximately $5,800,000 in 2022 and $5,200,000 in 2021 7,262,666 | 6,526,134 736,532 113% 6,998,063 264,603 38% 5,967,063 1205603  217%
1400 Property Taxes and Other 2279535 | 2,542,438 (262,903 [10.3%) 3,277,023 (997,488)  {30.4%) 2,437,930 (158,395)  (6.5%)
1500 Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements s . no+0 ‘ . f0+0 593,796 (503,796)  {100.0%)
1600 Supplies 1,369,361 | 1,361,162 8,199 06% 1,371,691 2330 (02%) 1,290,772 78,589 6.1%
17.00 Prepaid Expenses 512,578 284,260 228,318 803% 511,097 1,481 03% 396,853 115725 202%
1800 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS [Sum Rows 10, 11, 13, 14, 15,16,17) 20,577,696 | 21,134,237 {556,541 (26%) 27,989,785 (7.412,089)  [76.5% 30,693,603 110,115.907)  (33.0%)
1800
2000 LONG-TERM ASSETS
2100 Investments 13,630,651 | 14,237,246 (606,595)  (4.3%) 14,237,246 (606,595)  (4.3%) 11,910,829 1719822 144%
22.00 Capital Assets
2300 Capltal Assets Not Being Deprecated 1967698 | 1,815,076 152,622 B4% 973,740 993,958  102.1% 570,083 1,397,615 2452%
24.00 Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 28,713,110 | 28,997,919 (284,809) (1.0%) 28,944,738 (231,628)  {0.8%) 30,321,103 (1,607,993)  (53%)
2500 Total Capital Assets, Net 30,680,808 | 30,812,995 (132187)  (04%) 29,518,478 762,330 30,891,186 (210,378)
2600 Long Term Prepaid Lease no+0
27.00 TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS 44,311,459 | 45,050,281 (7387820 [16%) 44,155,724 155,735 04% 42,802,015 1,509,444 15%
2800 no+0
2900  TOTALASSETS {Sum Rows 18, 27] 64,889,155 | 66,184,478 (1,295323)  {2.0%) 72,145,508 {7.256.354)  (10.1%] 73,495,618 63)  (11.7%)
—a—t e e IR e 22520 200 L S N
3000
3100  UABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
3200
3300 CURRENT UABILITIES
3400 Current Portian of Lang-Term Debt 290,284 290,284 . 00% 200,284 . 0o% 1,326,307 (L036,023)  (78.1%)
35.00 Accounts Payable 3304010 | 2,505,121 798,889 319% 2,335,157 968,853  415% 1,289,537 2,014,473 1562%
3600 Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 118,198 723,550 (605352)  (83.7%) 830,464 118198 no+0
37.00 Deferred Revenue 1,595,236 | 2,005,882 #116d6)  (20.5%) 3,321,920 (1,726684)  (520%) 9,314,891 (7,719,655 (82.9%)
38.00 Accrued Expenses . no +0
39.00 Salarias, Wages, and Related Uisbilities 1,996,482 | 1,751,026 245,456 14.0% 1,182,177 B14,305  68.9% 2,193,965 (197,483)  (9.0%)
4000 Compensated Absences 583,402 | 1,003,857 (20,455)  {2.0% 888,439 94963  107% 920,205 63,197 6.9%
41.00 Other 54,495 185,456 (131971)  (708%) 54,800 (30s)  {0.6%) 55,255 (760)  (14%)
4200 TOTAL CURRENT LIABIITIES 8,342,107 | 8,467,186 (125,079)  (15%) 8,903,241 (561,134)  (5.3%) 15,100,161 (6,758.054) __(44.8%)
4300
44.00 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
4500 Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 13,403,569 | 13,433,903 @0334) 2% 13,550,746 (147,770 (u1%) 13,763,964 (360395)  (26%
46.00 Long-Term Partlon of Accounts Payable g - - no+0 - . no+0 308,349 {308,349) (100 0%)
47.00 TOTAL LONG - TERM LIARIUITIES 13,403,569 | 13,433,903 (30334)  (0.2%) 13,550,745 (1474770 11%) 14,072,313 (668,744} (4.8%)
28,00
4900 TOYALUABILTIES {Surs Row 38, 33) 21745676 | 21901089 55413 (0.7%) 22,853,087 [708311)  [3:2%) 29172474 7.426758) _(25.5%)
5000 — S—
5100 DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - PROPERTY TANES 3115973 | 3115979 % 0.0% 3,115,979 2 0.0% 3,115,979 . 0.0%
52.00
53.00 NETPOSITION
54,00 Net Investment in Capltal Assets 16,732,870 | 17,088,808 (355,938)  (21%) 16,077,048 655,422 41% 17,239,581 (506,711)  (2.9%)
55,00 Restricted, Expendable 3,920,597 | 3,920,503 92 oo% 3,919,973 624 00% 3,919,204 1,383 00%
56.00 Unrestricted 19,374,033 | 20,011,910 (637.877)  (32%) 26578123 (7,204,090)  (27.1%) 20,048,380 (674,347)  (3.4%)
5700 TOTALNET POSITION 40,027,500 | 41,021,221 1993.721)  [2.4%) 46,575,548  (5,508,004)  [14.1%) 41,207,165 (1,179,665)  (2.9%)
5800
5000 TOTAL LUABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 60089155 | 66,018,288 (1,149,130)  (17%) 72045509 (7256,350) _ {10.1%) 73,495,618 (8,605,463) __{11.7%)
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ESTES PARK HEALTH

Bal Sheet {L ited) of Net Position
June 30, 2022
2022 June 2022 May 2021 Dec 2021 June
2022 lun) - 2022 Jun) - -
2022 Jun minus| {12922 1un) 2022 1un minus| {12022 un) 2022 Jun minus | (20220
Actual Actual STl (2022 May)) + Actual 2021 Dec {2021 Dec)) + Actual oot (2021 Jun)) +
V' | ABs(2022 May) ABS(2021 Dec) UM | ABS(2021 lun)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,232,959 6,499,740 {1,266,781) (19.5%) 11,911,938 (6,678,979} (56.1%) 16,087,985 {10,855,026) {67.5%)
Restricted Cash Under Debt Agreements 3,920,597 3,920,503 94 0.0% 3,919,973 624 0.0% 3,919,204 1,393 0.0%
Receivables no+0
Patient and Resident, Net of Estimated Uncollectables of
approximately $5,800,000 in 2022 and $5,200,000 in 2021 7,262,666 6,526,134 736,532 11.3% 6,998,063 264,603 3.8% 5,967,063 1,295,603 21.7%
Praperty Taxes and Other 2,279,535 2,542,438 (262,903) (10.3%) 3,277,023 (997,488) (30.4%) 2,437,930 (158,395) (6.5%)
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements - - - no+0 . - no+0 593,796 {593,796) (100.0%)
Supplies 1,369,361 1,361,162 8,199 0.6% 1,371,691 (2,330} (0.2%) 1,290,772 78,589 6.1%
Prepaid Expenses 512,578 284,260 228,318 80.3% 511,097 1,481 0.3% 396,853 115,725 29.2%
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS (Sum Rows 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17} 20,577,696 21,134,237 {556,541) 2.6%) 27,989,785 {7,412,089) (26.5%) 30,693,603 (10,115,907) (33.0%)
LONG-TERM ASSETS
investments 13,630,651 14,237,246 (606,595) (4.3%) 14,237,246 (606,595) (4.3%) 11,910,829 1,719,822 14.4%
Capital Assets
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,967,698 1,815,076 152,622 8.4% 973,740 993,958 102.1% 570,083 1,397,615 245.2%
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation | g 1311 | 28,807,019 (284,809)  (L0%) 28,944,738 (231,628)  (0.8%) 30,321,103 (1607,993)  (53%)
Total Capital Assets, Net 30,680,808 30,812,995 (132,187) (0.4%) 29,918,478 762,330 30,891,186 {210,378)
Long Term Prepaid Lease no+0
TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS 44,311,459 45,050,241 (738,782) (1.6%) 44,155,724 155,735 0.4% 42,802,015 1,509,444 3.5%
no+0
TOTAL ASSETS (Sumn Rows 18, 27) 64,889,155 66,184,478 {1,295,323) {2.0%) 72,145,509 (7,256,354) {10.1%) 73,495,618 (8,606,463) {11.7%)
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 290,284 290,284 - 0.0% 290,284 - 0.0% 1,326,307 {1,036,023) {78.1%)
Accounts Payable 3,304,010 2,505,121 798,889 31.9% 2,335,157 968,853 41.5% 1,289,537 2,014,473 156.2%
Estimated Third-Party Payor Settlements 118,198 723,550 (605,352) (83.7%) 830,464 118,198 no=+0
Deferred Revenue 1,595,236 2,006,882 (411,646) {20.5%) 3,321,920 {1,726,684) {52.0%) 9,314,851 (7,719,655) (82.9%)
Accrued Expenses - no+0
Salaries, Wages, and Related Liabilities 1,996,482 1,751,026 245,456 14.0% 1,182,177 814,305 68.9% 2,193,965 {197,483) (9.0%)
Compensated Absences 983,402 1,003,857 {20,455) (2.0%) 888,439 94,963 10.7% 920,205 63,197 6.9%
Other 54,495 186,466 (131,971) (70.8%) 54,800 {305) (0.6%) 55,255 (760) (1.4%)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,342,107 8,467,186 (125,079} (1.5%) 8,903,241 (561,134) (6.3%) 15,100,161 (6,758,054) {44.8%)
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 13,403,569 13,433,903 (30,334) {0.2%) 13,550,746 (147,177) {1.1%) 13,763,964 (360,395} (2.6%)
Long-Term Portion of Accounts Payable - . . no+0 - - no+0 308,349 (308,349)  (100.0%)
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 13,403,569 13,433,903 (30,334) {0.2%) 13,550,746 {147,177) (1.1%) 14,072,313 (668,744) (4.8%)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {Sum Row 3§, 43) 21,745,676 21,901,089 (155.413) {0.7%) 22,453,987 (708,311) (3.2%) 29,172,474 (7.426,798) {25.5%)
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - PROPERTY TAXES 3,115,979 3,115,979 - 0.0% 3,115,979 - 0.0% 3,115,979 - 0.0%
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 16,732,870 17,088,808 (355,938) {2.1%) 16,077,448 655,422 4.1% 17,239,581 {506,711) (2.9%)
Restricted, Expendable 3,920,597 3,920,503 94 0.0% 3,919,973 624 0.0% 3,919,204 1,393 0.0%
Unrestricted 19,374,033 20,011,910 (637,877) (3.2%) 26,578,123 {7,204,090) {27.1%) 20,048,380 (674,347) (3.4%)
TOTAL NET POSITION 40,027,500 41,021,221 (993,721) (2.4%) 46,575,544 (6,548,044) {14.1%) 41,207,165 {1,179,665) {2.9%)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 64,889,155 66,038,289 {1,149,134) (1.7%) 72,145,509 {7.256,354) (10.1%) 73,495,618 (8,606,463) (11.7%)




ESTES PARK HEALTH
St of and Changes in Net Position (Unaudited)

Six Months Ending June 30, 2022

5 MONTH 2022 YEAR TO DATE 2021 YEAR TO DATE 2020 YEAR TO DATE
6 June 2022 Jan through Jun Jan through Jun Jan through Jun
Actual - Percent (A- Actual - Percent (A- 2022 Actual - Percent (21- 2022 Actual - Percent (21-
7 Actual (A Budget (B, Actual (A Budget (B 2021 A | 20
@) EB)  pgget  B)aBs(B) ) BetB)  pugget  BjeaBS(E) 2l 5021 Actual  20j:aBs(20)| 2020 A o000 Actual  19)-BS(19)

8 OPERATING INCOME

9
10 OPERATING REVENUES
11
12 Charges for Patient Services
13 Inpatient 892,510 1,051,415 (158,905)  (15.1%) 4,514,009 5,801,457 (1,287,448) (22.2%) 5,170,666 {656,657) {12.7%) 5,603,975 (1,089,966) {19.4%)
14 Outpatient 8,155,528 8,052,853 102,675 1.3% 38,999,327 38,388,189 611,138 1.6% 37,538,408 1,460,919 3.9% 31,331,743 7,667,584 24.5%
15 Total Charges for Patient Services 9,048,038 9,104,268 (56.230) (0.6%) 43,513,336 44,189,646 {676.310)  {1.5%) 42,709,074 804,262 1.9% 36,935,718 6,577,618 17.8%
16
17 Deductions from Charges for Patient Services
18 Contracts (Medicare, Medicaid, Commercial) (3,567,340)  (3,960,357) 393,017 9.9% (19,294,917)  (19,222,494) (72,423)  (0.4%) (15,202,254) (92,663)  (0.5%) (16,132,160)  (3,162,757)  (19.6%)
19 Charity, Bad Debt, Uncompensated (184,300)  (159,325) (24,975)  (15.7%) (961,914) (773,320)  (188,594) (24.4%) (827,845) (134,069)  (16.2%) (568,733) (393,181)  (69.1%)
20 Total Deductions from Charges for Patient Services (3,751,640) (4,119,682) 368,042 B.9% {20,256,831) (19,995,814) {261,017) (1.3%) (20,030,099) {226,732) (1.1%) {16,700,893)  (3,555,938) (21.3%)
21
22 Net Patient and ident Service R: » Net 5,296,398 4,984,586 311,812 6.3% 23,256,505 24,193,832 {937.327) {3.9%) 22,678,975 577.530 2.5% 20,234,825 3,021,680 14.9%
23 Net Patient income / Total Charges for Patient Services as a Pg 58.5% 54.7% 53.4% 54.8%
24
25 Other Operating Revenues 21,774 41,750 (19,976)  (47.8%) 197,954 315,500 (117,546)  (37.3%) 397,334 {199,380)  {50.2%) 234,543 (36,589)  {15.6%)
26
27 Total Qperaﬁng Revenues (Row 22 + Row E".! 551.8,172 5,026,336 291,836 5.8% 23,454,459 24,509,332 (1,054,873) (4.3%) 23,076,309 378,150 1.6% 20,469,368 2,985,091 14.6%
28
29 Operating Expenses
30 Salaries and Wages 2,078,849 2,048,678 30,171 1.5% 11,853,487 12,819,320 {965,833) {7.5%) 11,536,549 316,938 2.7% 12,147,638 (294,151) (2.4%)
31 Employee Benefits 467,136 560,491 {93,355) (16.7%) 2,958,770 3,445,410 (486,640) (14.1%) 3,098,755 {139,985) {4.5%) 3,360,026 (401,256) {11.9%)
32 Professional Fees and Purchased Services 1,971,798 1,111,387 860,411 77.4% 9,005,055 7,216,620 1,788,435 24.8% 6,240,455 2,764,600 44.3% 5,999,537 3,005,518 50.1%
33 Supplies 715,139 503,733 211,406 42.0% 2,871,148 3,010,439 (139,291) (4.6%) 2,558,128 313,020 12.2% 2,854,530 16,618 0.6%
34 Utilities 120,106 51,595 68,511 132.8% 387,533 310,820 76,713 24.7% 333,286 54,247 16.3% 274,005 113,528 41.4%
35 Leases and Rentals 85,232 112,924 (27,692) (24.5%) 592,743 708,818 (116,075)  (16.4%) 456,183 96,560 19.5% 293,054 299,689 102.3%
36 Insurance 37,434 29,130 8,304 28.5% 191,958 166,985 24,973 15.0% 168,673 23,285 13.8% 184,098 7,860 4.3%
EXs Repairs and Maintenance 21,361 11,470 9,891 86.2% 85,040 64,800 20,240 31.2% 52,659 32,381 61.5% 107,140 (22,100} (20.6%)
38 Depreciation 284,809 270,932 13,877 5.1% 1,637,802 1,628,900 8,902 0.5% 1,615,987 21,815 1.3% 1,523,433 114,369 7.5%
33 Other 315,514 213,950 101,564 47.5% 1,700,656 1,429,827 270,829 18.9% 1,409,743 290,913 20.6% 1,204,816 495,840 41.2%
40 Total Operating Expenses (Sum of Rows 30 to 39) 6,097,378 4,914,290 1,183,088 24.1% 31,284,192 30,801,939 482,253 1.6% 27,510,418 3,773,774 13.7% 27,948,277 3,335,915 11.9%
41
42 TOTAL OPERATING INCOME (LDS§) {Row 27 minus Row 4DI {779,206) 112,046 (891.252) (795.4%) {7.,829,733}) (6,292,607) (1,537.126) (24.4%) (4,434,109) {3,395,624) {76.6%) (7,478,909} {350.824) 4.7%)
43 Operating Margin = Total Operating Income (Luss) + Total Operating &
44
45 NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
46 Property Tax Revenues 291,625 291,625 - 0.0% 1,758,709 1,749,750 8,959 0.5% 1,568,799 189,910 12.1% 1,511,864 246,845 16.3%
47 Interest Expense (32,036) (33,550) 1,514 4.5% {191,737} {201,300) 9,563 4.8% (215,418) 23,681 11.0% (211,198) 19,461 9.2%
a8 Investment Income (637,501} 11,292 (648,793} (5745.6%) (633,510) 27,750 (661,260) (2382.9%) (1,842) (631,668) (34292.5%) 77,760 (711,270)  (914.7%)
49 Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets - - - + - - - = * - 0.0%
50 Noncapital Grants and Contributions 17,207 50,000 (32,793) (65.6%) 17,207 50,000 (32,793) (65.6%) 24,735 (7,528) {30.4%) 7,731 9,476 122.6%
51 Other - 754,792 (754,792) (100.0%) 331,020 753,752 (422,732)  (56.1%) 5,323,060 {4,992,040) {93.8%) 75,207 255,813 340.1%
52 TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET {Sum of Rows 46 to 51) {360,705) 1,074,159 (1.434,864) (133.6%) 1,281,689 2,379,952  (1,098,263) (46,1%) 6,699,334 (5,417,645} (80.9%) 1,461,364 {179,675}  (12.3%)
53

BEF
54 :;‘:5:;:” REVESNUES OVERIENRENSES DRECARITAL {1,139,911) 1,186,205 (2,326,116} (196.1%) (6,548,044) (3,912,655) (2,635,389) (67.4%) 2,265,225 (8,813,269) (389.1%) (6,017,545) {530,499) (8.8%)
55
56 Capital Contributions - - s ) s - 55,888 55,888 (100.0%) 132,905 (132.505)  {100.0%)
57
58 NET POSITION INCREASE (DECREASE) [Row 54 + Row 56) (1,139,911) 1,186,205 (2,326,116) (196.1%) (6,548,044) (3,912,655) (2,635,389) (67.4%) 2,321,113 (8,869,157} ‘382,1%) (5.884,640) (663,404) {11.3%)
59 Total Margin = Net Position + Total Operating Revenues (21.4%) 23.6% (27.9%) {16.0%)
60
61 Net Position - Beginning of Period 41,167,411 46,575,544 38,886,052 42,374,631
62
63 NET POSITION - END OF PERIOD 40,027,500 40,027,500 41,207,165 36,489,991
_—
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PARK HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Estes Park Health

Statistical information

Medical/surgical patient days
Swing bed patient days
Observation days
Obstetric days
New born days

Total patient days
Number of births
Total surgeries
Emergency room visits
Urgent Care visits
Clinic visits
Diagnostic imaging tests
Lab tests
Rehab visits
Ambulance trips
Home Health visits

Hospice days

Pharmacy requisitions

Six months Six months Six months
June, 2022 June, 2022 ended June, 2022 ended lune, 2022 ended June, 2021
actual budget actual budget actual

104 86 439 460 451

5 30 168 130 109

59 54 289 244 238

5 6 31 44 53

4 6 26 44 41
177 182 953 922 892

4 3 18 22 23

34 55 152 255 242
622 646 2,493 2,253 2,291
833 450 2,175 1082 938
2,056 2,100 10,080 11,160 10,683
1162 1,341 5,506 5,651 5,450
7,029 7,019 37,154 36,984 36,403
878 800 4,480 4,244 4,177
204 257 903 970 970
540 798 3,294 4,159 4,159
117 210 680 930 907
4,967 5,566 29,229 28,400 34,161



